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. Wells Fargo Bank NA et al

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON

AT TACOMA
STEVEN L. KLINGER, JR. and
SHEILA J. KLINGER, CASE NO. 3:10-cv-05546-RJB
Plaintiffs, ORDER GRANTING DEFENDANT
V. WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A’’S MOTION
FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT AND
WELLS FARGO BANK, NA, DISMISSING CLAIMS AGAINST WELLS

FARGO BANK, N.A.
Defendant.

This matter comes before the Court orfddelant Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.’s motion for
summary judgment. Dkt. 23. The Court hassidered the motion and the relevant record
herein.

l. PROCEDURAL AND FACTUAL HISTORY

On April 30, 2008, Plaintiffs Steven L. Klingand Sheila J. Klingg(“Plaintiffs”), in
order to secure payment of a promissoner(tiie “Note”) in theamount of $243,676.00, grantg
to Mortgage Electronic Registrations Systeins, (‘MERS”) as nominee for Lender Pierce
Commercial Bank, its successors and assigns (“Lepdeateed of trust (the “Deed of Trust”).

Dkt. 23-3. The Deed of Trust encumbers the real property commonly known as 8503 163
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Street Court East, Puyallup, Washington 98375 (the “Propenty.’) The Deed of Trust was
recorded with the Pierce County Auditor on April 30, 20G8.

On December 8, 2009, MERS executed aigasnent of deed of trust (the
“Assignment of Deed of Trust”) wareby it assigned its interastder the Deed of Trust to Well
Fargo Bank, N.A. (“Wells Fargo”). Dkt. 23-4lhe Assignment Deed of Trust was recorded (
December 9, 2009ld. On December 8, 2009, Wells Faigstructed Northwest Trustees
Service (“NWTS”) to transmit a Notice of Defatdt Plaintiffs on behalf of Wells Fargo. DKkt.
24, at 2.

On December 9, 2009, Wells Fargo recordedppointment of successor trustee (the
“Appointment of Successor Trustee”) naming NVWRS successor trustee. Dkt. 23-5. On
December 15, 2009, Plaintiffs recorded a docureatitled “Constructive Legal Notice of
Lawful Debt Validation Demand” (the “Record&emand”) with the Pierce County Auditor.
Dkt. 23-6. The Recorded Demand states that Hfaifdlispute the allegedortgage debt in it's
[sic] entirety for being inaccurate It at 1.

On August 5, 2010, Plaintiffs filed withéhCourt (1) an apigation to proceedh forma
pauperis (2) a proposed Petition, (3) a propogedition for Restraining Order, (4) a
memorandum in support of the proposed PetittwrRestraining Order, and (5) a proposed
Petition for Temporary InjunctionDkt 1. Plaintiffs filed a Rirn of Service stating their
Original Petition and motions for temporangtmining order were served on Defendants via
U.S. Mail on August 5, 2010. Dkt. 3.

On August 6, 2010, the Property was sold at ade’s sale to Wellargo as the highes

bidder. Dkt. 23-1. A Trustee’s Deed svdelivered and recorded on August 17, 20@0.
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On August 11, 2010, the Court issued an oddgrying Plaintiffs’ apjication to proceed
in forma pauperis Dkt. 2. On August 16, 2010, Plaintiffsid the necessary filing fee. On
September 1, 2010, the Court issued anraitdaying Plaintiffs’ motion for temporary
restraining order. Dkt. 12.

On October 12, 2010, Wells Fargo filed thistmoo for summary judgment. Dkt. 23. In
the motion for summary judgment, Wells Faaggues that any claiagainst it should be
dismissed because (1) Plaintiffs failed t@exse their pre-sale remedies under RCW 61.24.1]
and (2) Plaintiffs fail to makeany factual allegations as to WéeFargo in support of any of
Plaintiffs’ claims. 1d.

On October 27, 2010, Plaintiffs filed a natirequesting leave to file an amended
complaint. Dkt. 28. On October 28, 2010, theu@ issued an order denying Plaintiffs’ motion
and directing Plaintiffs to file any argumeitsevidence that theyoaght to include in an
amended complaint in their response to Wellgg&a motion for summary judgment. Dkt. 29.

On November 21, 2010, Plaintiffs filed a responBét. 33. In their response, Plaintiffg
argue (1) that Pierce Commercial Bank failed t&ensufficient disclosures to Plaintiffs and
should be added as a party to tase, (2) the Assignmieof Deed of Trust is “false,” (3) the
Declaration of Jennifer RobinsonKD 24) is illegitimate, and (4) Wells Fargo did not adhere
the requirements of RCW 61.24 when “WellsgeaHome Mortgage” and “Wells Fargo Bank,
NA” both apparently intexcted with Plaintiffs.ld.

On November 24, 2010, Wells Fargo filed a reply. Dkt. 34.

1. SUMMARY JUDGMENT STANDARD

Summary judgment is proper gnf the pleadings, the discewy and disclosure materia

on file, and any affidavits showahthere is no genuine issue asitry material fact and that thg
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movant is entitled to judgmeas a matter of law. Fed.RyP. 56(c). The moving party is
entitled to judgment as a matter of law wlilea nonmoving party fails to make a sufficient
showing on an essential element of a clairthe case on which the nonmoving party has the
burden of proof.Celotex Corp. v. Catretd77 U.S. 317, 323 (1985). There is no genuine iss
of fact for trial where the record, taken as a whoteyld not lead a ration#dier of fact to find
for the non moving partyMatsushita Elec. Indus. Co. v. Zenith Radio Co#5 U.S. 574, 586
(1986)(nonmoving party must pesg specific, significant probagvevidence, not simply “some
metaphysical doubt.”)See alsd-ed.R.Civ.P. 56(e). Convergeh genuine dispute over a
material fact exists if there is sufficieenidence supporting the claimed factual dispute,
requiring a judge or jury to resolviee differing versions of the truttAnderson v. Liberty
Lobby, Inc, 477 U.S. 242, 253 (1986);W. Elec. Service Inc. v. Pacific Electrical Contractor
Association809 F.2d 626, 630 {oCir. 1987).

The determination of the existence of a matdact is often a close question. The cou
must consider the substantive evidentiary butahthe nonmoving partypust meet at trial —
e.g., a preponderance of the eride in most civil caseAnderson477 U.S. at 254T.W. Elect.
Service InG.809 F.2d at 630. The court must resolve facyual issues of controversy in favor
of the nonmoving party only wheneliacts specifically attestday that party contradict facts
specifically attested by the moving party. Themoving party may not merely state that it wi
discredit the moving party’s evidence at trial, in the hopes thdtese can be developed at tri
to support the claimT.W. Elect. Service Ind809 F.2d at 630 (relying ofnderson, supra)
Conclusory, non specific statements in affidaaits not sufficient, and “missing facts” will not
be “presumed.”Lujan v. National Wildlife Federatiom197 U.S. 871, 888-89 (1990).

1. DISCUSSION
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A. Claims in Plaintiffs’ Complaint (Dkt. 5)

Plaintiffs’ complaint, totang twenty-fives pages,ontains rambling, inarticulate
accusations against the banking industry in génétawever, because Plaintiffs filed this
complaintpro se the Court has construed the pleadingerklly and has afforded Plaintiffs the
benefit of any doubtSee Karim-Panahi v. Los Angeles Police Deg®9 F.2d 621, 623 (9th
Cir.1988).

Plaintiffs’ complaint can be fairly summarizéalallege eight claims: (1) violation of thq
Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. 8§ 16@t seq (2) breach of fiduciargduty; (3) negligence; (4)
fraud; (5) breach of an implied covenant of godthfand fair dealing; (6) intentional infliction
of emotional distress; (7) unjust enrichmemigl 48) deceptive advertising and business pract
in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 45. Dkt. 5. Wellsriga seeks dismissal of all claims alleged agair
it. Dkt. 23.

As a preliminary matter, the complaint dowt mention Wells Fargo in any section of
the complaint other than (1) the pleadings’ cap(@kt. 5, at 1), (2) a paragraph on the first p4g
identifying the partiesld.), and (3) a passing reference to ltla@k in a history of the financial
system (Dkt. 5, at 3). Instead, the allegationBlaintiffs’ complaint are generally targeted
towards the “Lender” and the “Defendants.” vidgheless, the Court will examine each of thg
claims alleged in the complaint to determine if any casébban made out against Wells Farg

Claims under the Truth in Lending AdRlaintiffs claim thathe conduct of Defendants i
in violation of the Truth inLending Act (TILA), 15 U.S.C. § 160%t seq Dkt. 5, at 22. Wells
Fargo argues that any TIL&laim against it is time beed. Dkt. 23, at 10.

A claim for monetary damages under TILA “mig brought ... within one year from th

date of the occurrence of thelation.” 15 U.S.C. § 1640(e). ALA violation occurs at the
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time the loan documents are sign&ke Meyer v. Ameriquest Mortgage (332 F.3d 899, 902
(9th Cir.2003) see also/atomanyuk v. Quality Loan Service Corp. of Washindgiéa
F.Supp.2d 1242, 1244 (W.D.Wash.2010).

Here, the evidence shows that the loan irsjae was closed iApril 2008 (Dkt. 23-2)
and that Plaintiffs filed their claims under TILA August 2010 (Dkt. 5). Plaintiffs’ claims for
monetary damages under TILA were therefbrought outside the limitations period.

Plaintiffs also apparently argue that timitations period for TILAshould be equitably

tolled. Dkt. 5, at 14. For a TILA claim, eitgble tolling “suspend[s] the limitations period unt

the borrower discovers or had reaable opportunity to discovére fraud or nondisclosures that

form the basis of the... actiorKing v. State of Cal.784 F.2d 910, 915 (9th Cir.1986).
However, “[w]here equitable tolling may be aalble to a federal claim, the ‘claim accrues ..
upon awareness of the actual injury, not upon amess that this injury constitutes a legal

wrong.” Lukovsky v. San Franciscb35 F.3d 1044, 1049 (9th Cir.2008)ere, Plaintiffs have

not provided evidence to show thhey only discovered the alledy@ILA violations outside the

limitations period or that they did not have agenable opportunity to discover the alleged fraud

or non-disclosures within the limitations perioficcordingly, because equitable tolling of the
TILA statute of limitations is not ggopriate for this claim, the claim should be dismissed.
Breach of fiduciary duty Plaintiffs allege that “Bfendants...owed [Plaintiffs] a
fiduciary duty of care with respeto the mortgage loan transans and related title activities
involving the Trust Property.” Ok5, at 19. Although the “Trugtroperty” is noidentified in
the complaint, Plaintiffs presumably refer to tealrproperty that is the focus of this dispute.

Wells Fargo argues that because it acquired iiefi®al interest moréhan eighteen months
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after the origination of the loan, it owes no fidugiduty to Plaintiffs orwhich Plaintiffs can be
entitled to relief. Dkt. 23, at 9.

Breach of a fiduciary duty imposes liability in toffedvest Agrinomics VI v. Tedman
Properties V49 Wn.App. 605, 607 (1987). In order to prévRlaintiffs “must establish: (1) thg
existence of a duty [owed to them]; (2) a breacthat duty; (3) a resulting injury; and (4) that
the claimed breach was the proximate cause of the injitgrisen v. Friend118 Wn.2d 476,
479 (1992). Whether a legal dutyigs is a question of lawd.

Here, Plaintiffs have alleget facts nor provided any evidento show that Wells Farg
owes Plaintiffs a fiduciary duty. Wells Fargo aoed its beneficial iterest in December 2009,
nearly two years after ¢halleged conduct during the marketing and origination of their loan
Plaintiffs apparently claim to be a breachadfduciary duty. Plaitiffs have provided no
indication that Wells Fargo wanvolved in the allegedly appropriate conduct that they
describe. Accordingly, because there was no exastef a duty owed to Plaintiffs from Wells
Fargo, this claim should be dismissed as a matter of law.

Negligence.Plaintiffs claim that Defendants ed to Plaintiffs “a general duty of
care...to properly perform due diligence as to the loans and related transactional issues.”
at 20. Wells Fargo argues that because it ixeessor trustee appointed over eighteen mont
after the origination of the loanpwyclaim of negligence fails asnaatter of law. Dkt. 23, at 8-9

“In an action for negligence a plaintiff mystove four basic elements: (1) the existeng
of a duty, (2) breach of that duty, (3) résg injury, and (4) proximate causeRanger Ins. Co.
v. Pierce Countyl64 Wn.2d 545, 552-53 (200&)upting Degel v. Majd¢& Mobile Manor, Inc,
129 Wn.2d 43, 48 (1996)). If any of these elemeatmot be met as a matter of law, summat

judgment for Wells Fargo is proper.
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Here, Plaintiffs have not estiished that Wells Fargo owed them a duty of care. While
Plaintiffs’ allegations relate tthe origination of their mortgagthe evidence presented by Wells
Fargo shows that Wells Fargo only became involved with this loan many months after the
conduct described by Plaintiffs took place. Becdhsee are no genuine issues of material fact,
Plaintiffs’ negligence claim should be dismissed.

Fraud. Plaintiffs bring a @dim of common law fraudirguing that Wells Fargo
promulgated false misrepresentations to causetPlaito enter in to their mortgage “without
knowledge or understanding of the terms thereof.” Dkt. 5, at 21.

Under Washington law, a claim for frabds the following nine elements: “(1)
representation of an existing fa(2) materiality; (3¥alsity; (4) the speak&s knowledge of its
falsity; (5) intent of the speakémnat it should be acted upon the plaintiff; (6) plaintiff's
ignorance of its falsity; (7) plaintiff's reliance tre truth of the representation; (8) plaintiff's
right to rely upon it; and (9) damaes suffered by the plaintiff.Stiley v. Block130 Wn.2d 486,
505 (1996).

To survive a motion to dismiss, a comptainust plead allegations of fraud with
particularity. Fed.R.Civ.P. 9(b). The complamust include “an account of the ‘time, place,
and specific content of the false representataanwell as the identities of the parties to the
misrepresentations.3wartz v. KPMG LLP476 F.3d 756, 764 (9th Cir.2007) (quotiadwards
v. Marin Park, Inc, 356 F.3d 1058, 1066 (9th Cir.2004)). Maver, “Rule 9(b) does not allow a
complaint to merely lump multiple defendants tihge but requires plaintiffs to differentiate
their allegations when suing more than one nidd@t and inform each defendant separately of
the allegations surrounaj his alleged patrticipation in the fraudd” at 764-65 (internal

guotation and edits omitted). Thus, where, ag,heefraud suit involves multiple defendants, ‘fa
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plaintiff must, at a minimum, identify the roté each defendant in the alleged fraudulent
scheme.”Id. at 765 (internal quotation and edits omitted).

Rather than identifying the specific circurustes of Wells Fargo’s allegedly fraudulen
conduct, Plaintiffs make broad allegationatttDefendants” made non-specified negligent
misrepresentations to Plaintiff®laintiffs have failed to identifwhat role Wells Fargo played
in any alleged fraud. Furthermore, Plaintdig not produce any evidee regarding any of the
elements of fraud to rebut Wells Fargo’s motionsummary judgment. Accordingly, this clai
should be dismissed.

Breach of an implied covenaot good faith and fair dealingPlaintiffs argue that
Defendants breached the implied covenant of dawl and fair dealing when Defendants (1)
failed to provide all proper disclosures andféled to perform valid or properly documented
substitutions and assignments “so that Plaintiéfsld ascertain their rights and duties.” Dkt. §
at 22.

There is in every contract an ifirgal duty of good faith and fair dealindgadgett v.
Security State Banik16 Wn.2d 563, 569 (1991). This duty obtigs the parties to cooperate
with each other so that each may obtain the full benefit of performéahce.

Here, Plaintiffs have nohswn how Wells Fargo’s allegedilizre to disclose prevented
Plaintiffs from receiving the benddiof the loan agreement. Plaintiffs’ rights and duties werg
established by the original morggmdocuments and any assignment of the Note did not cha
Plaintiffs’ rights and duties. T&claim should be dismissed.

Intentionalinfliction of emotional distressPlaintiffs claim thaDefendants were liable

for the tort of intentional infliction of emotionalstress, also known as outrage. Dkt. 5, at 23,
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“The tort of outrage requas the proof of three elements: (1) extreme and outrageous
conduct, (2) intentional or reldss infliction of embonal distress, and J&ctual result to
plaintiff of severe emotional distressKloepfel v. Bokgr149 Wn.2d 192, 195 (2003). “The
guestion of whether certain condigsufficiently outrageous is orthrily for the jury, but it is

initially for the court to determine if reasdslea minds could differ on whether the conduct wa

U7

sufficiently extreme to result in liability Dicomes v. Statel13 Wn.2d 612, 630 (198%ee
Robel v. Roundup Corpl48 Wn.2d 35 (2002). “The firsteghent requires proof that the
conduct was ‘so outrageous in character, areki@me in degree, as to go beyond all possible
bounds of decency, and to be regarded as atrecand utterly intolerable in a civilized
community.” Robe] 148 Wn.2d at 51 (quotingicomes 113 Wn.2d at 630).

Here, Wells Fargo’s alleged conduct doesexateed all boundssually tolerated by
decent society. Plaintiffs’ conclusory stasmhthat Defendants’ conduct was extreme and
outrageous, without alleging faobr producing evidence to supptirs legal conclusion, is
insufficient as a matter of law. Moreover, Pldfstassert that they suffered severe emotiona
distress, but do not allege any facts in suppottiisfassertion. Because Plaintiffs have not mgt

their burden to establish a genuiasue of materidhct, this claim should be dismissed.

Unjustenrichment. Plaintiffs appear to allege that Wells Fargo was unjustly enriched as

a result of various “spurious fees and chargé&kt. 5, at 18. Under Washington law, unjust

enrichment is composed of three elements: “(&)d&fendant receives artedit, (2) the received
benefit is at the plaintiff's expse, and (3) the circumstancesken# unjust for the defendant to
retain the benefit without paymentyoung v. Youndl64 Wn.2d 477, 484-485 (2008).

A party may not bring an umgt enrichment claim where axpress contract governs th

11

relationship between the partidglacDonald v. Haynerd3 Wn.App. 81, 85-86 (1986). “A
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party to an express contractoigund by the provisions of thatrtract and may not disregard th
same and bring an action on an implied cacttrelating to the same subject matter, in
contravention of the express contradéd.” Here, notwithstanding éhfact that Wells Fargo
became involved with this mortgage more thayhtgen months after the origination of the loa
Plaintiffs’ express contract wittheir lender bars thefrom bringing an unjst enrichment claim
relating to the loan contrac6ee Guketlov v. Homekey Mortg., LIZD09 WL 3785575
(W.D.Wash.2009). Accordingly, thidaim should be dismissed.

Deceptive advertising and unfair business practices in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 45.

Plaintiffs allege that Defedants have engaged in a variety of unfair and unlawful
business practices in violation of thedéeal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 8etSeq This
section of the United States Code, howeversaum provide for any prate cause of action.
See, e.g., Holloway v. Bristol-Myers Cqr$85 F.2d 986, 988 (D.C.Cir.1973). Therefore, thig
claim should be dismissed.

B. Additional Claims in Plaitiffs’ Response (Dkt. 33)

As demonstrated above, Plaintiffs’ respodees not provide sufficient evidence to me
their burden to defeat Wells Fargo’s motiongammary judgment on th@aims presented in
Plaintiffs’ complaint. However, Plaintiffgesponse does raise new claims that were not
presented in Plaintiffs’ complaint. While tl®urt would ordinarily not consider new claims
presented in a response to a motion for summalyment, in the interesf fairness the Court
will liberally construe the pleading for the beimeff Plaintiffs. Furthermore, because Wells
Fargo responded to each of the new claims pteddsy Plaintiffs, these new claims have bee

fully briefed to the Court.
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False Assignment of Deed of Trustlaintiffs argue thaiVells Fargo “caused to be
recorded in the county record false filings,” gpeally the Assignment oDeed of Trust (Dkt.
23-4). Dkt. 33, at 3-5. Accondg to Plaintiffs, the Assignment &feed of Trust is “false” and
assigned nothing to Wells Fargo because & Yexecuted by a party Mortgage Electronic
Registration Systems (MERS), which has [najddecial interest irthe underlying Debt
Obligation at all.” Dkt. 33, &. In its reply, Wells Fargo arga this claim is without merit
because MERS is authorized to serve as afiogarg under the Washington Deed of Trust Act
and because an assignment by MERS was authaim&d accordance with Washington law.
Dkt. 34.

Plaintiffs’ claim regarding MERS’ role undéhe Washington Deed of Trust Act is
similar to other claims that have been regdah past cases broughtthis district. See, e.g.,
Daddabbo v. Countrywide Home Loans, Ji2010 WL 2102485 (W.D. Wash. May 20, 2010);
Vawter v. Quality Loan Service Corp. of Washing®v F.Supp.2d 1115, 1125-1126 (W.D.
Wash. 2010). The Court concurs with the analseigrding this issui@ those well reasoned
cases. As a result, summanggment on this issue in favof Wells Fargo is appropriate

because there exist no genuissues of material fact.

Challenge to legitimacy of Rotson Declaration (Dkt. 24)Plaintiffs appear to challenge

the reliability of the Declaration of Jennifeobinson in Support of Defendant Wells Fargo’s
Motion for Summary Judgnme (Dkt. 24). Dkt. 33, at 6. Wells Fargo contends that Plaintiffs
claim is speculation anditliout supporting evidence.

Plaintiffs’ claim is meritlessIn support of theiallegation, Plaintiffs filed a deposition
from an unrelated state court case that theyeastpows the unreliability dhe declaration. Dkt.

33-2. This evidence does not support Plaintifsitention and does not raise a genuine issug

ORDER GRANTING WELLS FARGO’S MOTION
FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT - 12

b of




© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN NN NN P P P P P PP P PR
o 0 A W N P O © ® N o o » W N P O

material fact as to any claim against Wellsgeéa Accordingly, Wells Fargo is entitled to
summary judgment on this issue.

Non-adherence to RCW 61.24 regardiligells Fargo Home Mortgage.”Plaintiffs
allege that Wells Fargo failed to adhere t® tbquirements of RCW 61.2tb complete a lawful
foreclosure” because interamtis between Plaintiffs and WeHlsargo apparently involved both
“Wells Fargo Home Mortgage” and “Wells fig@ Bank, NA.” Dkt. 33, at 6-7. Wells Fargo

argues that both “Wells Fargo Home Mortgagatl “Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.” are “one and th

same” because Wells Fargo Home Mortgage merged into Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. in 2004.

34, at 11.

This claim is also without merit. In resporieePlaintiffs’ debt valdation requests, Well$

Fargo responded to Plaintiffs via a letter datebruary 11, 2010. Dkt. 13-9. In this letter,
Wells Fargo makes clear that WéeFargo Home Mortgage &division of Wells Fargo Bank,
NA. Id. Plaintiffs present no legitimate basis to challenge the fact that they were previous
notified as to the relationship between thetersi Because there are no genuine issues of
material fact regarding thisaim, Wells Fargo is entitled summary judgment on this issue.

Claims against Pierce Commercial BarRlaintiffs claim that Pierce Commercial Bank
failed to provide sufficient disclosures during thgymration of thei loan. Dkt. 33, at 2. Pierce
Commercial Bank is not a party this case. Because Plaintiffs’ allegations against Pierce
Commercial Bank do not involve W& Fargo to any extent, Wellsargo should not be forced t
expend additional resources asault of this new claim. Accordingly, this new claim should
not stand in the way of grani summary judgment in favor Wells Fargo. Furthermore,

Plaintiffs are not precludeddm pursuing claims againsthetr parties in a new case.
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V. ORDER
Therefore it is hereb@ RDERED that Defendant Wells Fargo’s motion for summary
judgment (Dkt. 23) iISRANTED. All claims against Defendant Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. are
DISMISSED and this case iBI SMISSED.
The Clerk is directed to send uncertified copéthis Order to all counsel of record an
to any party appearing pro sesaid party’s last known address.

DATED THIS 9th day of December, 2010.

fo oI

ROBERT J. BRYAN
United States District Judge
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